
 

 

 

Public Notice – Board of Education Online Public Meeting 

 

A public meeting of the Board of Education for School District 62 (Sooke) will be held on April 30, 2024, at 7:00 

pm. 

 

Please note that all Public Board and Committee meetings are now held in person at the District School Board 

Office, located at 3143 Jacklin Road, Victoria.   

 

Furthermore, the meeting will be livestreamed via MS teams, to encourage more public participation. 

To join the in meeting please click here:  Public Board Meeting | Sooke School District (sd62.bc.ca) 
and click Follow Link. 

 

To guide you, the following is information on how to join a live event in MS Teams. 

https://support.office.com/en-us/article/attend-a-live-event-in-teams-a1c7b989-ebb1-4479-b750-c86c9bc98d84 

 Anyone who has the link can attend the online meeting without logging in to MS Teams.  

 Members of the public have the opportunity to ask questions related to agenda items discussed at the 

meeting: 

o Select the Q&A function on the right side of the screen. 

o When asking a question using the Q&A function, please identify yourself.  Anonymous 

questions will not be responded to. 

 A reminder for Stakeholder groups to use the Q&A function. 

o Members of the media can direct their questions to the Communications Manager at School 

District 62 for response following the meeting. 

 

 

If you have questions regarding the meeting and how to access it that aren’t answered in the link above please 

email info@sd62.bc.ca.  See link for upcoming and previous Board and Committee meetings Public Meetings | 

Sooke School District (sd62.bc.ca) materials. 

 

Page 1 of 160

https://www.sd62.bc.ca/board-education/public-meetings/public-board-meeting-26
https://support.office.com/en-us/article/attend-a-live-event-in-teams-a1c7b989-ebb1-4479-b750-c86c9bc98d84
mailto:info@sd62.bc.ca
https://www.sd62.bc.ca/board-education/public-meetings
https://www.sd62.bc.ca/board-education/public-meetings


 

 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 

PUBLIC MEETING 
By Live Event 

April 30, 2024 – 7:00 p.m.  
 

AGENDA 

 
1. 

 

2. 

 

3. 

CALL TO ORDER AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF FIRST NATIONS TERRITORIES 

We are honoured to be meeting on the traditional territories of the Coast Salish, specifically 
Esquimalt Nation, Songhees Nation, and acknowledge the three nations SD62 works with 
directly in our schools:  Sc’ianew Nation, and T’Sou-ke Nation; including the West Coast 
Pacheedaht Nation, Nuu-chah-nulth. (words gifted by the three nations SD62 works with) 

AGENDA (page 2) 

2.1  Call for amendments and additional items 

Motion Requested: That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) 

adopt the public meeting agenda of April 30, 2024, as presented (or as 

amended). 

 

2.2  Report on In Camera Meeting – Amanda Dowhy 

This notice is to inform the public that prior to this meeting an “in-camera” meeting of 

the Board was held where issues of legal, land and personnel were discussed. 

MINUTES (page 6) 

3.1  Call for amendments to minutes 

Motion Requested: That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) 

adopt the public meeting minutes of the March 12, 2024, as presented (or as 

amended). 

4. 

5. 

 

INFORMATION ITEMS AND ANNOUCEMENTS 

4.1  Board Chair Update – Amanda Dowhy 

 

EDUCATIONAL PRESENTATIONS (page 12) 

5.1  School Trip to Baltimore, MA, October 31-November 4, 2024 – Lucas MacNeil 

 

5.2  School Trip to Portland, OR, November 15-November 17, 2024 – Lucas MacNeil 

 

Page 2 of 160



 

 

5.3 School Trip to Seattle, WA, December 6-December 8, 2024 – Lucas MacNeil 

 

5.4 School Trip to Huntington Beach CA, January 24-January 29, 2025 – Lucas MacNeil 

 

5.5 School Trip to Portland OR, March 14-March 16, 2025 – Lucas MacNeil 

 

5.6 School Trip to Sisters, OR, May 2-May 5, 2025 – Lucas MacNeil 

 

5.7 School Trip to Denver, CO, June 12-June 16, 2025 – Lucas MacNeil 

 

Motion Requested:  That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) approve 

the Royal Bay Secondary School Lacrosse trips outlined in 5.1 to 5.7, subject to the 

oversight and direction of the Superintendent’s Office. 

 

5.8 School Trip to Tokyo, Japan, Spring 2025 – John McIntosh 

 

Motion Requested:  That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) approve 

the Royal Bay Secondary School Trip to Tokyo, Japan Spring 2025, subject to the 

oversight and direction of the Superintendent’s Office. 

  

5.9 Student Trip to Thailand, March 17-March 25, 2025 – Yvonne Clarke 

 

 

 

 

6. 

Motion Requested:  That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) approve 

the Spencer Middle School Trip to Thailand, March 17-March 30, 2025, subject to the 

oversight and direction of the Superintendent’s office. 

5.10  Student Trip to Spain March 2025 – Tiffany Evans 

Motion Requested:  That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) approve 

the Belmont Secondary School Trip to Spain, Spring 2025, subject to the oversight and 

direction of the Superintendent’s Office. 

 

CORRESPONDENCE & DELEGATIONS 

6.1  Correspondence (page 83) 

a.  Email from Justine C, dated April 1, 2024, RE: Build Seamless Before & After School 

Childcare 

 

6.2  Standing Delegations (STA, CUPE, PVP, SPEAC) – 5 minutes each 
 

Page 3 of 160



 

 

7. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

8. 

 

FINANCE, FACILITIES AND SERVICES 

7.1  Resources Committee – Meeting of April 16, 2024 – Christine Lervold (page 84) 

Motion Requested:  That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) allow all 

three readings of the Capital Plan Bylaw 2024/25-CPSD62-01 at its meeting of April 30, 

2024. 

Motion Requested:  That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) give first, 

second and third readings of the Capital Plan Bylaw 2024/25-CPSD62-01. 

 

Motion Requested:  That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke)  

receive the report from the Resources Committee Meeting of April 16, 2024. 

7.2  Education Committee of the Whole Meeting of April 23, 2024 – Amanda Dowhy (page 87) 

Motion Requested:  That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) receive  

the report from the Education Committee of the Whole meeting of April 23, 2024. 

 

7.3   2024/25 Annual Budget Bylaw – Harold Cull (page 91) 

 

Motion Requested:  That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) give first 

reading to the 2024/25 Annual Budget Bylaw, specifying a total of $221,123,327. 

 

EDUCATION PROGRAM 

8.1  Education-Policy Committee – Meeting of April 9, 2024 – Cendra Beaton (page 109) 

Motion Requested:  That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) give 

Notice of Motion to draft Policy and Regulations C-114 “Sanctuary Schools”. 

Motion Requested: That the Board of Education for School District 62 (Sooke) give 

Notice of Motion to new Policy and Regulations F-329 “Records Management”. 

 
Motion Requested:  That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) receive

 the report from the Education-Policy Committee Meeting of April 9, 2024. 

 

8.2  Adoption of Policy and Regulations – Paul Block (page 123) 

Motion Requested:  Given that the required period for Notice of Motion has been 

served, that the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) adopt draft revised 

Policy and Regulations C-211 “Challenge and Equivalency”. 

 

Page 4 of 160



 

 

9.  STUDENTS 

9.1  Three-Year Rolling School Year Calendar – Monica Braniff (page 134) 

Motion Requested:  That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) give 

Notice of Motion to draft a School Year Calendar for 2025-26 and 2026-27. 

10.2  Trustee Liaison Reports – Board of Education 

 

10.  FOUNDATIONS AND GOVERNANCE 

10.1  Na’tsa’maht Education Council Meeting of April 24, 2024 – Russ Chipps (page 140) 

 

 Victoria Family Court and Youth Justice Committee – Christine Lervold 

 BCSTA Annual General Meeting – Christine Lervold 

 French Advisory Committee – Cendra Beaton 

 

11.  ADMINISTRATION 

11.1  Board of Education 90 Day Work Plan – Amanda Dowhy (page 160) 

 

12.  PERSONNEL 

12.1  Superintendent’s Report – Paul Block 

 

13.  UPCOMING EVENTS 

 

14.  FUTURE ITEMS 

 

15.  QUESTION PERIOD 

Members of the public have the opportunity to ask questions related to agenda items 

discussed at tonight’s meeting using the QA function in MS Teams.  Individuals must identify 

themselves and ask questions directed to the Chair. Members of the media can direct their 

questions to the Manager, Communications for response following the meeting. 
 

16. ADJOURNMENT 

Page 5 of 160



 

 

MINUTES 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
PUBLIC MEETING 

March 12, 2024 – 7:00 p.m. 
 
TRUSTEES:  Amanda Dowhy, Board Chair  Cendra Beaton, Vice Chair (virtual)  

 Russ Chipps (virtual)   Christine Lervold    

Ebony Logins    Trudy Spiller     

Allison Watson 

 

STAFF:  Paul Block, Superintendent 

  Harold Cull, Secretary-Treasurer 

Monica Braniff, Deputy Superintendent 

D’Arcy Deacon, Associate Superintendent 

David Strange, Associate Superintendent 

Fred Hibbs, Executive Director, HR 

Farzaan Nusserwanji, Executive Director, IT 

  Steve Tonnesen, Manager, IT Operations 

 

REGRETS:   

 

SECRETARY: Kristina Ross 

 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF FIRST NATIONS TERRITORIES 

The meeting was called to order at 7:02 p.m. by the Board Chair, who acknowledged the 

traditional territories of the First Nations. 

 

2. AGENDA  

2.1 Call for amendments and additional items 

 

41. MOVED Allison Watson/Trudy Spiller 

That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) adopt the public 

meeting agenda of March 12, 2024, as amended. 

CARRIED 

  

Page 6 of 160



 

 

 

2.2 Report on In Camera Meeting – Amanda Dowhy 

This notice is to inform the public that prior to this meeting an “in-camera” meeting of 

the Board was held where issues of legal, land and personnel were discussed. 

 

3. MINUTES  

3.1 Call for amendments to minutes 

 

42. MOVED Cendra Beaton/Trudy Spiller 

That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) adopt the public 

meeting minutes of February 27, 2024, as presented. 

CARRIED 
 

4. INFORMATION ITEMS AND ANNOUCEMENTS 

4.1 Board Chair Update – Amanda Dowhy 

The City of Langford officially opened its Progress Pride Flag Crosswalk on February 

29th near Spencer Middle School.  While it was disheartening to witness the repeat 

vandalism of this crosswalk, the District will continue to advocate strongly for all of 

our students regardless of their gender, sexual orientation, cultural or ethnic ancestry. 

Partners in the community were on hand to support and help celebrate this crosswalk 

including the RCMP, trustees and staff and students. 

 

On Tuesday, March 5th the B.C. Government announced that Sooke-Westshore will 

receive a Foundry Centre which services young people aged 12-24 and gives access for 

mental health and well-being care, substances use, social support and services, and 

helps navigate assistance and self-care.  The District welcomed this announcement 

and looks forward to working with its partners in the community. 

 

On Tuesday, March 12th the B.C. Government announced $12M rebuild of the Port 

Renfrew Elementary School; the new school expected to open in 2025 will have a 50-

student capacity.  The District and Pacheedaht First Nation Chief Arliss Daniels 

welcomed the news and look forward to furthering its partnership as the school 

progresses from plans to reality. 

 

5. EDUCATIONAL PRESENTATIONS 

 

6. CORRESPONDENCE & DELEGATIONS 

6.1 Correspondence 

Email from Vickie Heist, dated March 5, 2024, RE: PA System Usage at Ruth King 

Page 7 of 160



 

 

Elementary School 

 

43. MOVED Ebony Logins/Allison Watson 

That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) receive the email 

from Vickie Heist, dated March 5, 2024, RE: PA System Usage at Ruth King 

Elementary School. 

CARRIED 

 

6.2 Standing Delegations (STA, CUPE, PVP, SPEAC) – 5 minutes each 

  STA – Christina Kempenaar 

Christina Kempenaar reported that there were 150 instances of violence reported 

by its members to the District in February; this is the highest number of instances 

reported ever in one month.  It looks forward to working with the Employer in 

making schools safer.  The STA noted that Human Resources is hiring a record 

number of TTOCs however, the District is still having an issue with failure to fill; 

teachers are being pulled from positions to backfill enrolling classes.  The STA has a 

PRO D Day scheduled for April 19, 2024, featuring keynote speakers Anthony 

Johnson and Dr. James Makokis. 

 

  CUPE 459 – Amber Leonard 

Amber Leonard acknowledged International Women’s Day held March 8, 2024, a global day to 

recognize and celebrate women’s and girls’ achievements.  CUPE is celebrating its 60th 

anniversary, and is running local radio ads to acknowledge this milestone.  CUPE 459 will host 

a PRO D Day on May 17th at Royal Bay Secondary School and is currently planning its 

programming.  The President acknowledged the budget pressure of between $1.424 to 

$2.442M for the upcoming school year.  CUPE 459 acknowledges that mitigation strategies 

looking at transportation fees and/or transportation service reductions may be required, in 

addition to walkable routes. 

 

  PVP – Kendra Laidlaw 

Kendra Laidlaw thanked members of the Facilities Team who kept school grounds 

clear of ice and snow.  The President of BCPVPA, Brian Leonard, was recently 

hosted by SD 62 at Centre Mountain Lellum Middle School and praised SD 62 for its 

valuable working relationships with its Indigenous Partners.  PVP are currently 

developing 2024/25 school timetables and working through registration requests.  

She provided her thanks to Digital Solutions for their support in this. 

  

Page 8 of 160



 

 

 

  SPEAC – Nevada Kaludjar 

SPEAC indicated that they are fielding questions from parents on what the 

transportation fee model will look like for the upcoming year.  Feedback from the 

community on the current transportation survey indicates that parents need specific 

fee amounts to properly provide comments.  The Superintendent, Board Chair and 

Secretary-Treasurer are attending the SPEAC meeting on March 13, 2024, to help 

answer any questions. 

 

7. FINANCE, FACILITIES AND SERVICES 

 

7.1 Resources Committee Meeting of March 6, 2024 – Christine Lervold 

Trustee Lervold provided an overview of the Resources Committee Meeting of March 

6, 2024, to the Board of Education.  

    

  44. MOVED Ebony Logins/Trudy Spiller 

That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) direct staff to bring 

back transportation service reduction models during the 2024/2025 budget 

development process.  

   CARRIED 

 

45.   MOVED Christine Lervold/Ebony Logins 

   That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) approve the Ethical 

Decision-Making Framework as presented at the Resources Committee 

meeting of March 6, 2024. 

   CARRIED 

 

46.   MOVED Christine Lervold/Cendra Beaton 

   That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) receive the report 

from the Resources Committee Meeting of March 6, 2024. 

   CARRIED 

 

8. EDUCATION PROGRAM 

8.1 Education-Policy Committee Meeting of March 5, 2024 – Cendra Beaton 

Trustee Beaton provided an overview of the Education-Policy Committee Meeting of 

March 5, 2024, to the Board of Education. 

 

47. MOVED Cendra Beaton/Allison Watson 

Page 9 of 160



 

 

That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) give Notice of Motion 

to draft Policy and Regulations C-211 “Challenge and Equivalency”.  

   CARRIED 

 

48. MOVED Cendra Beaton/Trudy Spiller 

That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) receive the report 

from the Education-Policy Committee Meeting of March 5, 2024. 

CARRIED 

 

9. STUDENTS 

9.1 School Calendar – Monica Braniff 

The Deputy Superintendent indicated that the District is working in coordination with 

SD 61 and SD 63 in the development of a rolling three year School Calendar.  The 

calendar will be presented to the Education-Policy Committee in May, coming to the 

Board of Education for approval in June. 

 

10.  FOUNDATIONS AND GOVERNANCE 

 10.1 Trustee Liaison Reports – Board of Education 

Trustee Lervold and the Board Chair attended the First Nations Regional Emergency 

Management Planning Gathering hosted by MLA Dean and Parmar on March 8th.  The 

initial meeting was an opportunity to bring stakeholders together in the affected 

communities (Port Renfrew to Esquimalt) and speak about the purpose of developing 

a community emergency strategic plan. 

 

10.2 Na’tsa’maht Education Council Meeting of February 28, 2024 – Paul Block 

The Superintendent congratulated newly elected Chief Arliss Daniels of Pacheedaht 

First Nation and Chief Lawrence Underwood of T’Sou-ke First Nation.  He thanked out-

going Chief Jeff Jones and Chief Gordon Planes for their leadership and contributions 

to their communities.  Joe Heslip, the Equity in Action Liaison for the Ministry of 

Education, provided a presentation to the Na’tsa’maht Education Council, in addition 

to a presentation on the Proposed Elementary Blended Learning Program, by Heather 

Lait, Principal SD 62 Online & Continuing Education. 

 

11.  ADMINISTRATION  

 11.1 Board of Education 90 Day Work Plan – Amanda Dowhy 

The Board Chair provided an overview of the work plan to the Board of Education.   

 

12. PERSONNEL 

12.1 Superintendent’s Report – Paul Block 

Page 10 of 160



 

 

The Superintendent provided the Board of Education an update on Learning, 

Engagement and Growth.  The District is supporting its students while they access and 

apply for the numerous scholarships that are available.  A recap of previous 

scholarship awards for the school year will be made available to the Board of 

Education in June and September.  The Superintendent will engage with students 

around the topic of transportation and budget concerns. 

 

13. UPCOMING EVENTS 

 

14. FUTURE ITEMS 

March 18/April 2 – Spring Break 

March 31- Transgender Day of Visibility 

April 3 – Schools Reopen 

April 9 – Education-Policy Committee Meeting 

April 16 – Resources Committee Meeting 

April 17/21-BCSTA AGM 

April 18 – Early Dismissal 

April 19 - Non-Instructional Day 

April 23 – Education Committee of the Whole Meeting 

April 30-Public Board Meeting 

 

15. QUESTION PERIOD 

 Members of the public have the opportunity to ask questions related to agenda items 

discussed at tonight’s meeting using the QA function in MS Teams.  Individuals must identify 

themselves and ask questions directed to the Chair. Members of the media can direct their 

questions to the Manager, Strategic Communications for response following the meeting. 

 

16. ADJOURNMENT 

 The meeting was adjourned at 8:29 p.m. 

 

Certified Correct: 

 

 

 

____________________________  _________________________________ 

Chairperson of the Board   Secretary-Treasurer 

Page 11 of 160



Page 12 of 160



Page 13 of 160



Page 14 of 160



Page 15 of 160



Page 16 of 160



Page 17 of 160



Page 18 of 160



Page 19 of 160



Page 20 of 160



Page 21 of 160



Page 22 of 160



Page 23 of 160



Page 24 of 160



Page 25 of 160



Page 26 of 160



Page 27 of 160



Page 28 of 160



Page 29 of 160



Page 30 of 160



Page 31 of 160



Page 32 of 160



Page 33 of 160



Page 34 of 160



Page 35 of 160



Page 36 of 160



Page 37 of 160



Page 38 of 160



Page 39 of 160



Page 40 of 160



Page 41 of 160



Page 42 of 160



Page 43 of 160



Page 44 of 160



Page 45 of 160



Page 46 of 160



Page 47 of 160



Page 48 of 160



Page 49 of 160



Page 50 of 160



Page 51 of 160



Page 52 of 160



Page 53 of 160



Page 54 of 160



Page 55 of 160



Page 56 of 160



Page 57 of 160



Page 58 of 160



Page 59 of 160



Page 60 of 160



Page 61 of 160



Page 62 of 160



Page 63 of 160



Page 64 of 160



Page 65 of 160

kross
Rectangle

kross
Rectangle

kross
Rectangle



Pa
ge

 6
6 

of
 1

64
Page 66 of 160



Page 67 of 160



Page 68 of 160

kross
Rectangle

kross
Rectangle



Page 69 of 160



Page 70 of 160



Page 71 of 160

kross
Rectangle



Page 72 of 160



Page 73 of 160



Page 74 of 160



Page 75 of 160



Page 76 of 160



Page 77 of 160



Page 78 of 160



Page 79 of 160



Page 80 of 160



Page 81 of 160



Page 82 of 160

kross
Rectangle



Page 83 of 160



 

 

Committee Report of  

Resources Committee Meeting of April 16, 2024 
 

Present:  

 

David Lee-Bonar, Assistant Secretary Treasurer 

 Nicole Gestwa, IT  

 

1. CALL TO ORDER AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF FIRST NATIONS TERRITORIES 

The meeting was called to order at 6:05 pm by the Committee Chair, who acknowledged that we are 
honoured to be meeting on the traditional territories of the Coast Salish, specifically Esquimalt 
Nation, Songhees Nation and acknowledge the three nation SD 62 works with directly in our schools; 
Scia’new Nation, Coast Salish, and T’Sou-ke Nation; including the West Coast Pacheedaht Nation 
Nuu-chah-nulth. (words gifted by the three Nations SD62 works with) 

 
2. COMMITTEE REPORT 

 The Board of Education of Sooke School District 62 (Sooke) received the Resources Committee Report 

dated March 6, 2024, at its Public Board Meeting dated March 12, 2024. 

 
3. PRESENTATIONS 
 

4. BUSINESS 

4.1 24/25 Budget Development Process – Harold Cull 

The Chair acknowledged our partner groups and the Leadership Budget Working Group (LBWG) for 

their participation and feedback on the 24/25 budget process.  Staff provided an update to the 

Committee on the process and indicated that the budget is expected to grow by $8.473M. albeit, there 

remain unfunded pressures of approximately $2.8M due to inflation and growth.   

Christine Lervold, Trustee (Committee Chair) 

Ebony Logins, Trustee 

Trudy Spiller, Trustee 

Cendra Beaton, Trustee 

Paul Block, Superintendent 

Harold Cull, Secretary Treasurer 

Monica Braniff, Deputy Superintendent 

Ceilidh Deichmann, PVP 

Ed Berlando, STA 

Trudy Court, CUPE 

Tom Davis, SPEAC 

Mhairi Bennett, Director, Facilities 

Page 84 of 160



 

 

 

The Committee discussed several aspects including: 

 “Ghost” riders and the potential impacts if transportation fees are charged; 

 Challenges with surveying the public on a complex issue such as the budget; 

 Working with municipalities on carbon offset credits;  

 Transportation fees and service level changes if the fee option is adopted by the Board;  

 Reserve Policy @ 2% 

 

4.2  24/25 Annual Facilities Grant Project Details – Mhairi Bennett 

Staff provided an overview of the 24/25 Annual Facilities Grant (AFG) and Minor Capital Program 

plans.  The amount of funding was discussed and the challenges with the funding not increasing 

based on the amount of schools/buildings in the District. 

 

The Committee discussed the proposed plan and how abatement work is addressed on a 

project by project basis.  The Committee also discussed the importance of accessibility and 

inclusivity and how these projects are identified and reviewed by the Minor Capital Committee. 

 

 

4.3 24/25 Capital Plan Bylaw – Harold Cull 

Staff presented the approved 24/25 minor capital projects that were included on the Capital 

Plan submission approved by the Board and the need to pass the Capital Plan bylaw in order to 

start these projects.   

 

As a result, the Committee supports the following motions going forward to the Board for 

consideration:  

 

 Motion Requested:  That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) allow all three 

readings of the Capital Plan Bylaw 2024/25-CPSD62-01 at its meeting of April 30, 2024. 

 

Motion Requested:  That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) give first, second 

and third readings of the Capital Plan Bylaw 2024/25-CPSD62-01. 

 

5. ADJOURNMENT AND NEXT MEETING DATE: May 14, 2024 

Page 85 of 160



Capital Plan Bylaw  

 
CAPITAL BYLAW NO. 2024/25 – CPSD62-01 

CAPITAL PLAN 2024/25 
 

WHEREAS in accordance with section 142 of the School Act, the Board of Education of School District 
No. 62 (Sooke) (hereinafter called the “Board”) has submitted a capital plan to the Minister of Education 
(hereinafter called the "Minister") and the Minister has approved the capital plan or has approved a 
capital plan with modifications, 
 
NOW THEREFORE in accordance with section 143 of the School Act, the Board has prepared this 
Capital Bylaw and agrees to do the following: 
 

(a) Authorize the Secretary-Treasurer to execute a capital project funding agreement(s) related to the 
capital project(s) contemplated by the capital plan or the capital plan with modifications; 

(b) Upon ministerial approval to proceed, commence the capital project(s) and proceed diligently 
and use its best efforts to complete each capital project substantially as directed by the Minister; 

(c) Observe and comply with any order, regulation, or policy of the Minister as may be applicable to 
the Board or the capital project(s); and, 

(d) Maintain proper books of account, and other information and documents with respect to the 
affairs of the capital project(s), as may be prescribed by the Minister. 

 
NOW THEREFORE the Board enacts as follows: 
 

1. The Capital Bylaw of the Board for the 2024/2025 Capital Plan as approved by the Minister, to 
include the supported capital project(s) specified in the letter addressed to the Secretary-
Treasurer and Superintendent, dated March 15, 2024, is hereby adopted. 

 
2. This Capital Bylaw may be cited as School District 62 (Sooke) Capital Bylaw No. 2024/25 – 

CPSD62-01. 
 
READ A FIRST TIME THE 30th DAY OF April 2024; 
READ A SECOND TIME THE 30th DAY OF April 2024; 
READ A THIRD TIME, PASSED THE 30th DAY OF April 2024. 
 
 
 _________________________________ 
 Board Chair 
 APPLY CORPORATE SEAL 
 
 _________________________________ 
 Secretary-Treasurer 
 
I HEREBY CERTIFY this to be a true and original School District 62 (Sooke) Capital Bylaw No. 2024/25 – 
CPSD62-01 adopted by the Board the 30th day of April 2024. 
 
 
 _________________________________ 
 Secretary-Treasurer 

April 2024 Page 86 of 160



�  

 

 

COMMITTEE REPORT 

EDUCATION COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE 
PUBLIC MEETING 

April 23, 2024 – 6:00 p.m. 

 
 

TRUSTEES:  Amanda Dowhy, Board Chair  Cendra Beaton, Vice Chair 

  Russ Chipps (virtual)   Christine Lervold 

  Ebony Logins    Trudy Spiller 

  Allison Watson 

 

STAFF: Paul Block, Superintendent 

  Harold Cull, Secretary-Treasurer 

  Monica Braniff, Deputy Superintendent 

  D’Arcy Deacon, Associate Superintendent 

Fred Hibbs, Executive Director, HR 

  Steve Tonnesen, Manager, IT Operations 

David Lee Bonar, Assistant Secretary-Treasurer 

___________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

The meeting was called to order at 6:01 p.m. by the Board Chair.  Amanda Dowhy acknowledged the traditional 

territories of the First Nations.  The Board Chair acknowledged stakeholders and members of the public 

participating in the meeting and reminded media to direct their questions to the Manager of Communications. 

 

The Board Chair provided an overview of a Conflict-of-Interest Declaration and asked the Committee members if 

they had any concerns.  Trustee Chipps declared a Conflict-of-Interest.   

 

The Board of Education received numerous pieces of correspondence concerning the recommended budget 

plan.  Each of these pieces of correspondence have been responded to by the Board Chair and have been 

retained for record keeping purposes. 

 

2. COMMITTEE REPORT  

No Committee Report. 

 

3. PRESENTATIONS 

Standing Delegations (SPEAC, SPVP, CUPE 459, STA) 

Member groups were given an opportunity to speak to the presentation. 

 

SPEAC-Tom Davis 

SPEAC spoke of its concern to the potential reduction to over ratio counselling by 1.37 FTEs, and the potential 

elimination of the full ECE pilot project which employs 11 FTEs. 

 

Sooke Principals and Vice Principals (SPVP)-Mark Johnson /Ruchi McArthur 

Page 87 of 160



�  

 

 

 

Representations from SPVP spoke of the strength of our organization and the clear mandate that it received 

from the Executive Team with regards to potential reduction mitigation strategies.  A robust conversation at 

the leadership level occurred, the membership supports the recommended budget put forth by staff.  

 

CUPE 459 -Amber Leonard 

The CUPE 459 President thanked staff for the 2024/25 Budget Development Process presentation.  She 

requested a change to process following the reduction in allocation announcement from the District.  She 

would like in future for stakeholders to reconvene if the District receives less than the anticipated allotment 

from the Ministry of Education and Child Care. She asked that the Board of Education consider using their 

budget reserve, consider increasing rental rates for community use, and spoke of her concern to the potential 

reduction to custodial coverage ($150K), the possible elimination of the ECE Pilot Project (11 FTEs), and asked 

the District to stop contracting services to external agencies as Digital Solutions and Facilities currently uses 

this practice. 

 

STA-Rita Zeni 

Acting President Rita Zeni raised her concern over the potential reduction of Department Teacher 

Coordinators (3FTE), the possible reduction in over ratio counselling (1.37 FTE) and the reduction in district 

wide support teachers ($298K).  She asked the Board of Education to review senior management level 

expenses, and dip into its budget reserve to balance the upcoming budget. 

 

Further the STA has specific questions that it asked the Executive Team.  The Acting President will provide 

these questions to the Board Chair for a response. 

 

Delegations (Members of the Public) 

Members of the Public were given an opportunity to speak, and the Board of Education received multiple 

questions via MS Teams.  The comments have been summarized in the following groups: 

 

Eliminate Itinerant Staff Supports for Large Elementary Schools 

A staff member spoke about her concern around the elimination of itinerant staff that support large 

elementary schools.  She indicated that clerical members are unable to complete their daily tasks within 

school hours, and that some are working outside of school hours to keep up. Further they rely on the itinerant 

staff being on hand when they need to meet accounting deadlines etc.  Presently the job load at the large 

elementary level is unsustainable. 

 

Reduction to Custodial 

A staff member spoke regarding the potential reduction of approximately 2 FTE thereby increasing M² 

coverage.  The cleaning protocols introduced during the pandemic have caused issues and custodians find 

meeting their current workload almost impossible.  In addition, when space is rented, it increases the demand 

on custodians.  The Public believes that rental costs should be increased to cover the potential deficit and that 

no cuts to the custodian budget should occur. 

Reduction to Library Assistant Budget  

3 members of staff spoke about the need for Library’s in our schools, and the need for funded Library 

Assistants.  A potential 15% reduction of the current $348K budget is being considered (which equals a 

potential reduction of $52, 253).  The public reminded the Board of Education that a library is a safe space for 

all students, an essential hub, meeting place and classroom.  Further early literacy should be encouraged and 

the library fully stocked. 

 

Eliminate Early Childhood Educators (ECE) Pilot Project 

Page 88 of 160



�  

 

 

 

The Superintendent took the Board of Education through its recommended budget plan and spoke to the 

specific potential reductions.  Further there were some questions regarding the District’s reserve, and the 

45 members of the public raised their concerns over the possible elimination of the ECE Pilot Project (11 FTEs) 

at the Sooke School District. ECEs work with young children from birth to age five; they create and run 

educational programs that fuel children’s intellectual, physical, social and emotional growth.  The public felt 

this critical program should be fully funded and expanded to all classrooms. The loss of this program would be 

felt immensely by the school, students, and community. 

 

Of note, the District indicated that the 11 FTE currently in the ECE Pilot Project would have the opportunity to 

remain within our District in EA positions (within Collective Agreement guidelines); as both are CUPE 

positions, they would keep their seniority, hours would be based on the position accepted, and both roles 

have similar wage grids. 

 

Busing Fee Model/Reduction in Transportation Routes/Imposing Walk Limits 

2 members of the public commented on the busing model fee ($300/student), and the financial burden it will 

create for families.  Of note, the District does have a fee waiver process in place.  In addition, catchment areas 

may need review if walk limits are imposed.  Lastly the public had an issue with the way the Ministry of 

Education and Child Care defines geographical locations and did not approve of the reduction in routes.   

 

Reduction in Over Ratio Counselling 

2 members of the public asked the Board of Education to reconsider the possible reduction in over ratio 

counselling (1.37 FTE). The public believes that an increase in elementary hours should be considered.   

4.  BUSINESS 

24/25 Budget Plan – Harold Cull 

Over the last several years the School District has seen record growth and manageable inflation, this has allowed 

the District the opportunity for innovation and to add staff and supports to classrooms.  Further, much needed 

requests for infrastructure have been granted by the Ministry of Education and Child Care.  However, we are in 

the midst of an economic shift and current projections show enrolment may be beginning to level after years of 

record growth. If the inflation and enrolment trends we are seeing follow this path, the District will continue to 

face fiscal challenges in future years and the Board of Education will need to reassess its financial position 

alongside revenues and pressures. 

 

Through an extensive consultation process with its leadership team and stakeholders, staff have devised a 

recommended budget plan for the Board of Education to consider.  As per Section 113 of the School Act (a) a 
board, by bylaw must adopt an annual budget on or before June 30 of each year for the next fiscal year.  

 
The School District has a budget pressure of $2.8M.  It is comprised of: 

  Employee Benefits - $1.8M pressure 

  Utilities - $.600M pressure 

  Geographic Location - $.400M pressure 

 

Staff took a balanced approach when reviewing mitigation options.  All employee groups were  

treated fairly and equally.  The following were assessed: 

  Busing fee models 

  Reallocate/reduce staffing levels 

  Reduce transportation routes/walk limits 

  Reduce department budgets (no school budgets) 

Page 89 of 160



�  

 

 

 

5. ADJOURNMENT 

The meeting was adjourned at 9:37 p.m. 

 

 
recommended notion from the Ministry of Education and Child Care that School District have 2% of its funding 

kept in a reserve for emergency occurrences and one-time funding requests.  If the Board approves all 

recommended measures, staff are projecting an estimated 2024/25 year end reserve of 1.53%. 

 

Staff will provide clarification on the number of classrooms that are currently served by ECEs, if there is an 

anticipated surplus in school year 2023/24 once Q3 is completed, and if an increase to rental fees is agreed to, 

a motion to proceed.  

Page 90 of 160



 

 

 

Additional informationSD62 Kindergarten – ECE Partnerships  

Goal: To develop Kindergarten teacher – ECE Partnerships to support young learners with a successful transition 

to school and to enhance the professional experience of both educators. 

Background: In 2011, the concept of a Kindergarten teacher – Early Childhood Educator (ECE) partnership 
evolved in SD62 during the development phase of the Nature Kindergarten program. For over a decade, SD62 
has grown these partnerships. 

The Kindergarten teacher – ECE partnership is intended for a Kindergarten teacher(s) who wishes to work and 

professionally learn in collaboration with an ECE. It begins with an expression of interest on the part of the 
Kindergarten teacher(s). In Spring 2023, all SD62 elementary schools were given an opportunity to apply for a K-

ECE Partnership at their school through an expression of interest process. However, not all schools had 
Kindergarten teachers who were interested in pursuing this model.  

Impact of K-ECE Partnerships:  

Elementary  
School 

Number of 
Kindergarten 
classes ECE 
partners with 50% 
of the time or more 

Number of 
Kindergarten/Grade 1 
classes ECE partners 
with 50% of the time 
or more 

Number of Kindergarten 
or Kindergarten/Grade 1 
classes ECE partners 
with less than 50% of 
the time 

Total Number of 
Kindergarten and 
Grade 1 students 
impacted 

Colwood 1   2 51 
Crystal View 1   1 20 
David Cameron 1 1   40 
Hans Helgesen 1     18 
John Muir 1 1   38 
John Stubbs 1     20 
Poirier 2   1 35 
Ruth King 1   2 60 
Sooke 1 1   36 
Savory 1 1   40 
Willway 1   2 55 
Totals: 12 4 8 413  

 

 There are 52 Kindergarten classes in SD62. This number includes both Kindergarten and K/1 classes. 

 Regular Kindergarten teacher – ECE partnerships take place for 50% or more of the school day in 16 K 
and K/1 classes. This represents 31% of all SD62 K classes. When considering classes impacted on 

a full- and part-time weekly basis, the percentage of impact increases to 46% of all SD62 K classes. 

 



1  

 

 

Board Info Note 
Public Board Meeting 

April 30, 2024 
Agenda Item: 7.3 – 24/25 Annual Budget Bylaw  

 
 
 

Background 
 

• The District has been working through the 24/25 budget development process since the 
middle of February and staff have now drafted a recommended plan for the Board to 
consider tonight and on May 28th  
 

• The attached Annual Budget Bylaw and Ministry template were part of the package and 
discussion held on April 23rd at the Board’s Education Committee of the Whole (ECoW) 

 

• Once the Board considers and debates the attached proposed bylaw, staff will confirm if 
any of the Board’s decision has an impact on the amount of the bylaw prior to the question 
being called 

 

• Also based on the Board’s decisions, staff will be able to update the Ministry template and 
financial plan for review at the May 28th Board meeting   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Prepared by: Harold Cull, Secretary Treasurer 

Page 91 of 160



A Bylaw of THE BOARD OF EDUCATION OF SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 62 (SOOKE)

(called the ''Board'') to adopt the Annual Budget of the Board for the fiscal year 2024/2025 pursuant

to section 113 of the School Act , R.S.B.C., 1996, c. 412 as amended from time to time (called the "Act ").

1. The Board has complied with the provisions of the Act , Ministerial Orders, and Ministry of

Education and Child Care Policies respecting the Annual Budget adopted by this bylaw.

2. This bylaw may be cited as School District No. 62 (Sooke)

Annual Budget Bylaw for fiscal year 2024/2025.

3. The attached Statement 2 showing the estimated revenue and expense for the

2024/2025 fiscal year and the total budget bylaw amount of $221,123,327 for the 2024/2025 fiscal

year was prepared in accordance with the Act .

4. Statement 2, 4 and Schedules 2 to 4 are adopted as the Annual Budget of the Board

for the fiscal year 2024/2025.

READ A FIRST TIME THE 30th DAY OF APRIL, 2024;

READ A SECOND TIME THE 28th DAY OF MAY, 2024;

READ A THIRD TIME, PASSED AND ADOPTED THE 28th DAY OF MAY, 2024;

( Corporate Seal )

I HEREBY CERTIFY this to be a true original of School District No. 62 (Sooke)

Annual Budget Bylaw 2024/2025, adopted by the Board the ______ DAY OF ___________________, 2024.

ANNUAL BUDGET BYLAW

Chairperson of the Board

Secretary Treasurer

Secretary Treasurer

DRAFT - Not Finalized

April 18, 2024  8:49

Page 92 of 160



Annual Budget

School District No. 62 (Sooke)

June 30, 2025

DRAFT - Not Finalized

April 18, 2024  8:49

Page 93 of 160



School District No. 62 (Sooke)
June 30, 2025

Table of Contents

Bylaw  ..........................................................................................................................................................................................................1

Annual Budget - Revenue and Expense - Statement 2  ..........................................................................................................................................2

Annual Budget - Changes in Net Financial Assets (Debt) - Statement 4  .............................................................................................................................................4

Annual Budget - Operating Revenue and Expense - Schedule 2  .......................................................................................................................................................5

Schedule 2A - Annual Budget - Schedule of Operating Revenue by Source  ..........................................................................................................................................................................................................6

Schedule 2B - Annual Budget - Schedule of Operating Expense by Object  ..........................................................................................................................................................................................................7

Schedule 2C - Annual Budget - Operating Expense by Function, Program and Object  ..........................................................................................................................................................................................................8

Annual Budget - Special Purpose Revenue and Expense - Schedule 3  ......................................................................................................10

Schedule 3A - Annual Budget - Changes in Special Purpose Funds  ..............................................................................................................................................11

Annual Budget - Capital Revenue and Expense - Schedule 4  ...............................................................................................................14

*NOTE - Statement 1, Statement 3, Statement 5, Schedule 1 and Schedules 4A - 4D are used for Financial Statement reporting only.

DRAFT - Not Finalized

April 18, 2024  8:49

Page 94 of 160



A Bylaw of THE BOARD OF EDUCATION OF SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 62 (SOOKE)

(called the ''Board'') to adopt the Annual Budget of the Board for the fiscal year 2024/2025 pursuant

to section 113 of the School Act , R.S.B.C., 1996, c. 412 as amended from time to time (called the "Act ").

1. The Board has complied with the provisions of the Act , Ministerial Orders, and Ministry of

Education and Child Care Policies respecting the Annual Budget adopted by this bylaw.

2. This bylaw may be cited as School District No. 62 (Sooke)

Annual Budget Bylaw for fiscal year 2024/2025.

3. The attached Statement 2 showing the estimated revenue and expense for the

2024/2025 fiscal year and the total budget bylaw amount of $221,123,327 for the 2024/2025 fiscal

year was prepared in accordance with the Act .

4. Statement 2, 4 and Schedules 2 to 4 are adopted as the Annual Budget of the Board

for the fiscal year 2024/2025.

READ A FIRST TIME THE 30th DAY OF APRIL, 2024;

READ A SECOND TIME THE 28th DAY OF MAY, 2024;

READ A THIRD TIME, PASSED AND ADOPTED THE 28th DAY OF MAY, 2024;

( Corporate Seal )

I HEREBY CERTIFY this to be a true original of School District No. 62 (Sooke)

Annual Budget Bylaw 2024/2025, adopted by the Board the ______ DAY OF ___________________, 2024.

ANNUAL BUDGET BYLAW

Chairperson of the Board

Secretary Treasurer

Secretary Treasurer

DRAFT - Not Finalized

April 18, 2024  8:49

Page 95 of 160



2025 2024 Amended

Annual Budget Annual Budget

Ministry Operating Grant Funded FTE's

School-Age 13,620.500                13,233.625                

Adult 19.500                       24.375                       

Total Ministry Operating Grant Funded FTE's 13,640.000                13,258.000                

Revenues $ $

Provincial Grants

Ministry of Education and Child Care 193,275,752              184,604,978              

Other 141,000                     265,490                     

Tuition 8,092,788                  6,914,749                  

Other Revenue 6,026,722                  6,424,267                  

Rentals and Leases 512,500                     502,500                     

Investment Income 878,875                     885,942                     

Amortization of Deferred Capital Revenue 11,197,272                10,992,151                

Amortization of Deferred Capital Revenue - For Lease 61,477                       61,477                       

Total Revenue 220,186,386              210,651,554              

Expenses

Instruction 181,963,544              173,447,555              

District Administration 7,343,442                  7,413,399                  

Operations and Maintenance 27,695,086                26,493,296                

Transportation and Housing 3,771,255                  4,539,638                  

Total Expense 220,773,327              211,893,888              

Net Revenue (Expense) (586,941)                   (1,242,334)                

Budgeted Allocation (Retirement) of Surplus (Deficit) 3,376,088                  

Budgeted Surplus (Deficit), for the year (586,941)                   2,133,754                  

Budgeted Surplus (Deficit), for the year comprised of:

Operating Fund Surplus (Deficit)

Special Purpose Fund Surplus (Deficit)

Capital Fund Surplus (Deficit) (586,941)                   2,133,754                  

Budgeted Surplus (Deficit), for the year (586,941)                   2,133,754                  

School District No. 62 (Sooke)
Annual Budget - Revenue and Expense

Year Ended June 30, 2025

Page 2

DRAFT - Not Finalized

April 18, 2024  8:49

Statement 2
 Page 96 of 160



2025 2024 Amended

Annual Budget Annual Budget

School District No. 62 (Sooke)
Annual Budget - Revenue and Expense

Year Ended June 30, 2025

Budget Bylaw Amount

Operating - Total Expense 172,882,328              162,856,604              

Operating - Tangible Capital Assets Purchased 2,704,100                  

Special Purpose Funds - Total Expense 34,166,984                35,534,985                

Capital Fund - Total Expense 13,724,015                13,502,299                

Capital Fund - Tangible Capital Assets Purchased from Local Capital 350,000                     350,000                     

Total Budget Bylaw Amount 221,123,327              214,947,988              

Signature of the Chairperson of the Board of Education

Signature of the Superintendent

Signature of the Secretary Treasurer

Approved by the Board

Date Signed

Date Signed

Date SignedDRAFT

Page 3

DRAFT - Not Finalized

April 18, 2024  8:49

Statement 2
 Page 97 of 160



2025 2024 Amended

Annual Budget Annual Budget

$ $

Surplus (Deficit) for the year (586,941)                   (1,242,334)                

Effect of change in Tangible Capital Assets

Acquisition of Tangible Capital Assets

From Operating and Special Purpose Funds (2,704,100)                

From Local Capital (350,000)                   (350,000)                   

Total Acquisition of Tangible Capital Assets (350,000)                   (3,054,100)                

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 12,134,213                11,912,497                

Total Effect of change in Tangible Capital Assets 11,784,213                8,858,397                  

-                                -                                

(Increase) Decrease in Net Financial Assets (Debt) 11,197,272                7,616,063                  

School District No. 62 (Sooke)
Annual Budget - Changes in Net Financial Assets (Debt)

Year Ended June 30, 2025

DRAFT - Not Finalized

April 18, 2024  8:49 Page 4

Statement 4
 Page 98 of 160



2025 2024 Amended

Annual Budget Annual Budget

$ $

Revenues

Provincial Grants

Ministry of Education and Child Care 161,793,043              153,091,639              

Other 141,000                     141,000                     

Tuition 8,092,788                  6,914,749                  

Other Revenue 1,839,122                  1,048,757                  

Rentals and Leases 512,500                     502,500                     

Investment Income 853,875                     835,971                     

Total Revenue 173,232,328              162,534,616              

Expenses

Instruction 148,133,437              138,249,447              

District Administration 7,343,442                  7,413,399                  

Operations and Maintenance 14,229,059                13,379,682                

Transportation and Housing 3,176,390                  3,814,076                  

Total Expense 172,882,328              162,856,604              

Net Revenue (Expense) 350,000                     (321,988)                   

Budgeted Prior Year Surplus Appropriation 3,376,088                  

Net Transfers (to) from other funds

Tangible Capital Assets - Work in Progress (2,704,100)                

Local Capital (350,000)                   (350,000)                   

Total Net Transfers (350,000)                   (3,054,100)                

Budgeted Surplus (Deficit), for the year -                                -                                

School District No. 62 (Sooke)
Annual Budget - Operating Revenue and Expense

Year Ended June 30, 2025

DRAFT - Not Finalized

April 18, 2024  8:49 Page 5

  Schedule 2 Page 99 of 160



2025 2024 Amended

Annual Budget Annual Budget

$ $

Provincial Grants - Ministry of Education and Child Care

Operating Grant, Ministry of Education and Child Care 161,382,708              149,697,605              

ISC/LEA Recovery (572,717)                   (572,717)                   

Other Ministry of Education and Child Care Grants

Pay Equity 931,052                     931,052                     

Funding for Graduated Adults 40,000                       40,000                       

Student Transportation Fund -                                358,365                     

FSA Scorer Grant 12,000                       12,000                       

Labour Settlement Funding -                                2,625,334                  

Total Provincial Grants - Ministry of Education and Child Care 161,793,043              153,091,639              

Provincial Grants - Other 141,000                     141,000                     

Tuition

Continuing Education 90,000                       90,000                       

International and Out of Province Students 8,002,788                  6,824,749                  

Total Tuition 8,092,788                  6,914,749                  

Other Revenues

Funding from First Nations 572,717                     572,717                     

Miscellaneous

Grants for Crossing Guards 70,000                       70,000                       

Rebates 51,000                       51,000                       

SGF Discretionary 200,000                     200,000                     

Transportation Safety Fees 80,000                       80,000                       

Miscellaneous 75,040                       75,040                       

Bus Fees 790,365                     

Total Other Revenue 1,839,122                  1,048,757                  

Rentals and Leases 512,500                     502,500                     

Investment Income 853,875                     835,971                     

Total Operating Revenue 173,232,328              162,534,616              

School District No. 62 (Sooke)
Annual Budget - Schedule of Operating Revenue by Source

Year Ended June 30, 2025

DRAFT - Not Finalized

April 18, 2024  8:49 Page 6

Schedule 2A Page 100 of 160



2025 2024 Amended

Annual Budget Annual Budget

$ $

Salaries

Teachers 64,294,218                60,976,908                

Principals and Vice Principals 10,498,675                10,460,864                

Educational Assistants 19,269,966                16,458,734                

Support Staff 15,279,517                15,509,574                

Other Professionals 5,808,016                  5,996,389                  

Substitutes 6,241,498                  6,178,277                  

Total Salaries 121,391,890              115,580,746              

Employee Benefits 32,487,986                29,783,165                

Total Salaries and Benefits 153,879,876              145,363,911              

Services and Supplies

Services 7,835,669                  7,326,240                  

Professional Development and Travel 1,140,112                  1,066,164                  

Rentals and Leases 308,858                     308,858                     

Dues and Fees 167,956                     166,956                     

Insurance 577,651                     487,651                     

Supplies 6,555,562                  6,295,180                  

Utilities 2,390,844                  1,815,844                  

Bad Debt 25,800                       25,800                       

Total Services and Supplies 19,002,452                17,492,693                

Total Operating Expense 172,882,328              162,856,604              

School District No. 62 (Sooke)
Annual Budget - Schedule of Operating Expense by Object

Year Ended June 30, 2025

DRAFT - Not Finalized

April 18, 2024  8:49 Page 7

 Schedule 2B Page 101 of 160



School District No. 62 (Sooke)
Annual Budget - Operating Expense by Function, Program and Object

Principals and Educational Support Other

Teachers Vice Principals Assistants Staff Professionals Substitutes Total

Salaries Salaries Salaries Salaries Salaries Salaries Salaries

$ $ $ $ $ $ $

1 Instruction

1.02 Regular Instruction 53,960,447          279,173               163,368               1,999,433            471,946               4,585,190            61,459,557          

1.03 Career Programs 191,744               169,508               34,680                 395,932               

1.07 Library Services 611,618               280,087               6,634                   898,339               

1.08 Counselling 1,995,664            1,157                   1,996,821            

1.10 Inclusive Education 4,748,353            302,763               18,688,406          178,275               1,376,481            678,683               25,972,961          

1.30 English Language Learning 941,636               244,688               32,640                 1,218,964            

1.31 Indigenous Education 642,729               298,661               418,192               107,098               32,679                 1,499,359            

1.41 School Administration 9,135,012            2,849,821            250,487               12,235,320          

1.61 Continuing Education 31,325                 31,325                 

1.62 International and Out of Province Students 1,190,590            321,200               411,340               1,923,130            

Total Function 1 64,282,781          10,336,809          19,269,966          6,271,575            1,848,427            5,622,150            107,631,708        

4 District Administration

4.11 Educational Administration 161,866               961,418               1,123,284            

4.40 School District Governance 147,500               147,500               

4.41 Business Administration 11,437                 605,035               2,339,306            96,602                 3,052,380            

Total Function 4 11,437                 161,866               -                           605,035               3,448,224            96,602                 4,323,164            

5 Operations and Maintenance

5.41 Operations and Maintenance Administration 134,974               165,443               300,417               

5.50 Maintenance Operations 5,829,025            237,118               395,815               6,461,958            

5.52 Maintenance of Grounds 830,597               830,597               

5.56 Utilities -                           

Total Function 5 -                           -                           -                           6,794,596            402,561               395,815               7,592,972            

7 Transportation and Housing

7.41 Transportation and Housing Administration 131,619               108,804               240,423               

7.70 Student Transportation 1,476,692            126,931               1,603,623            

Total Function 7 -                           -                           -                           1,608,311            108,804               126,931               1,844,046            

9 Debt Services

Total Function 9 -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           

Total Functions 1 - 9 64,294,218          10,498,675          19,269,966          15,279,517          5,808,016            6,241,498            121,391,890        

Year Ended June 30, 2025

Page 8
DRAFT - Not Finalized

April 18, 2024  8:49

 Schedule 2C Page 102 of 160



School District No. 62 (Sooke)
Annual Budget - Operating Expense by Function, Program and Object

1 Instruction

1.02 Regular Instruction

1.03 Career Programs

1.07 Library Services

1.08 Counselling

1.10 Inclusive Education

1.30 English Language Learning

1.31 Indigenous Education

1.41 School Administration

1.61 Continuing Education

1.62 International and Out of Province Students

Total Function 1

4 District Administration

4.11 Educational Administration

4.40 School District Governance

4.41 Business Administration

Total Function 4

5 Operations and Maintenance

5.41 Operations and Maintenance Administration

5.50 Maintenance Operations

5.52 Maintenance of Grounds

5.56 Utilities

Total Function 5

7 Transportation and Housing

7.41 Transportation and Housing Administration

7.70 Student Transportation

Total Function 7

9 Debt Services

Total Function 9

Total Functions 1 - 9

Year Ended June 30, 2025

Total Employee Total Salaries Services and 2025 2024 Amended

Salaries Benefits and Benefits Supplies Annual Budget Annual Budget

$ $ $ $ $ $

61,459,557          17,037,303          78,496,860          4,779,413            83,276,273               78,998,074               

395,932               117,489               513,421               496,663               1,010,084                 1,071,677                 

898,339               232,215               1,130,554            23,500                 1,154,054                 1,173,888                 

1,996,821            535,699               2,532,520            6,237                   2,538,757                 2,595,058                 

25,972,961          6,944,020            32,916,981          754,180               33,671,161               29,715,179               

1,218,964            303,721               1,522,685            68,236                 1,590,921                 1,372,284                 

1,499,359            356,637               1,855,996            400,754               2,256,750                 2,125,530                 

12,235,320          3,036,634            15,271,954          547,900               15,819,854               15,560,213               

31,325                 6,080                   37,405                 19,500                 56,905                       56,905                       

1,923,130            468,548               2,391,678            4,367,000            6,758,678                 5,580,639                 

107,631,708        29,038,346          136,670,054        11,463,383          148,133,437             138,249,447             

1,123,284            245,806               1,369,090            717,702               2,086,792                 1,958,727                 

147,500               9,500                   157,000               132,088               289,088                     289,088                     

3,052,380            717,931               3,770,311            1,197,251            4,967,562                 5,165,584                 

4,323,164            973,237               5,296,401            2,047,041            7,343,442                 7,413,399                 

300,417               72,824                 373,241               401,115               774,356                     949,193                     

6,461,958            1,735,331            8,197,289            1,457,359            9,654,648                 9,218,391                 

830,597               217,261               1,047,858            361,353               1,409,211                 1,396,254                 

-                           -                           2,390,844            2,390,844                 1,815,844                 

7,592,972            2,025,416            9,618,388            4,610,671            14,229,059               13,379,682               

240,423               61,298                 301,721               54,991                 356,712                     437,949                     

1,603,623            389,689               1,993,312            826,366               2,819,678                 3,376,127                 

1,844,046            450,987               2,295,033            881,357               3,176,390                 3,814,076                 

-                           -                           -                           -                           -                                 -                                 

121,391,890        32,487,986          153,879,876        19,002,452          172,882,328             162,856,604             

Page 9
DRAFT - Not Finalized

April 18, 2024  8:49

 Schedule 2C Page 103 of 160



2025 2024 Amended

Annual Budget Annual Budget

$ $

Revenues

Provincial Grants

Ministry of Education and Child Care 29,954,384                29,985,014                

Other 124,490                     

Other Revenue 4,187,600                  5,375,510                  

Investment Income 25,000                       49,971                       

Total Revenue 34,166,984                35,534,985                

Expenses

Instruction 33,830,107                35,198,108                

Operations and Maintenance 336,877                     336,877                     

Total Expense 34,166,984                35,534,985                

Budgeted Surplus (Deficit), for the year -                                -                                

School District No. 62 (Sooke)
Annual Budget - Special Purpose Revenue and Expense

Year Ended June 30, 2025

DRAFT - Not Finalized

April 18, 2024  8:49 Page 10

 
Schedule 3

 Page 104 of 160



School District No. 62 (Sooke)
Annual Budget - Changes in Special Purpose Funds

Annual Learning Scholarships School Ready, Classroom

Facility Improvement and Generated Strong Set, Enhancement

Grant Fund Bursaries Funds Start Learn OLEP CommunityLINK Fund - Overhead

$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $

Deferred Revenue, beginning of year -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                            -                          

Add: Restricted Grants

Provincial Grants - Ministry of Education and Child Care 336,877            571,426            192,000            41,650              433,781            797,821                 1,596,233           

Other 3,000,000         35,000                   

Investment Income 25,000              

336,877            571,426            25,000              3,000,000         192,000            41,650              433,781            832,821                 1,596,233           

Less: Allocated to Revenue 336,877            571,426            25,000              3,000,000         192,000            41,650              433,781            832,821                 1,596,233           

Deferred Revenue, end of year -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                            -                          

Revenues

Provincial Grants - Ministry of Education and Child Care 336,877            571,426            192,000            41,650              433,781            797,821                 1,596,233           

Other Revenue 3,000,000         35,000                   

Investment Income 25,000              

336,877            571,426            25,000              3,000,000         192,000            41,650              433,781            832,821                 1,596,233           

Expenses

Salaries

Teachers 70,000              71,000                   30,000                

Principals and Vice Principals 50,000                   

Educational Assistants 446,426            170,000              

Support Staff 5,000                145,000            10,000              55,000                   120,000              

Other Professionals 197,000                 

Substitutes 20,000              15,000              100,000            25,000                   953,000              

-                        446,426            -                        25,000              145,000            25,000              170,000            398,000                 1,273,000           

Employee Benefits 125,000            5,000                40,000              6,000                42,000              77,000                   298,233              

Services and Supplies 336,877            25,000              2,970,000         7,000                10,650              221,781            357,821                 25,000                

336,877            571,426            25,000              3,000,000         192,000            41,650              433,781            832,821                 1,596,233           

Net Revenue (Expense) -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                            -                          

Year Ended June 30, 2025

Page 11
DRAFT - Not Finalized

April 18, 2024  8:49

 Schedule  3A Page 105 of 160



School District No. 62 (Sooke)
Annual Budget - Changes in Special Purpose Funds

Deferred Revenue, beginning of year

Add: Restricted Grants

Provincial Grants - Ministry of Education and Child Care

Other

Investment Income

Less: Allocated to Revenue

Deferred Revenue, end of year

Revenues

Provincial Grants - Ministry of Education and Child Care

Other Revenue

Investment Income

Expenses

Salaries

Teachers

Principals and Vice Principals

Educational Assistants

Support Staff

Other Professionals

Substitutes

Employee Benefits

Services and Supplies

Net Revenue (Expense)

Year Ended June 30, 2025

Classroom First Nation Mental Changing Seamless SEY2KT ECL Feeding

Enhancement Student Health Results for Day (Early Years to Early Care Futures

Fund - Staffing Transportation in Schools Young Children Kindergarten Kindergarten) & Learning Fund Academies

$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $

-                           

24,078,539           33,947                  51,000                  6,000               55,400              19,000              175,000            1,565,710         

1,100,000         

24,078,539           33,947                  51,000                  6,000               55,400              19,000              175,000            1,565,710         1,100,000         

24,078,539           33,947                  51,000                  6,000               55,400              19,000              175,000            1,565,710         1,100,000         

-                           -                           -                           -                       -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

24,078,539           33,947                  51,000                  6,000               55,400              19,000              175,000            1,565,710         

1,100,000         

24,078,539           33,947                  51,000                  6,000               55,400              19,000              175,000            1,565,710         1,100,000         

19,262,830           70,000              

161,000            10,000              

43,000              72,000              65,000              

25,000                  5,000               8,000                10,000              

19,262,830           -                           25,000                  5,000               43,000              8,000                161,000            72,000              155,000            

4,815,709             5,000                    1,000               10,000              2,000                14,000              18,000              50,000              

33,947                  21,000                  2,400                9,000                1,475,710         895,000            

24,078,539           33,947                  51,000                  6,000               55,400              19,000              175,000            1,565,710         1,100,000         

-                           -                           -                           -                       -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

Year Ended June 30, 2025

Page 12
DRAFT - Not Finalized

April 18, 2024  8:49

 Schedule  3A Page 106 of 160



School District No. 62 (Sooke)
Annual Budget - Changes in Special Purpose Funds

Deferred Revenue, beginning of year

Add: Restricted Grants

Provincial Grants - Ministry of Education and Child Care

Other

Investment Income

Less: Allocated to Revenue

Deferred Revenue, end of year

Revenues

Provincial Grants - Ministry of Education and Child Care

Other Revenue

Investment Income

Expenses

Salaries

Teachers

Principals and Vice Principals

Educational Assistants

Support Staff

Other Professionals

Substitutes

Employee Benefits

Services and Supplies

Net Revenue (Expense)

Year Ended June 30, 2025

Art

Starts Donations Theatres TOTAL

$ $ $ $

-                        

29,954,384       

7,600                40,000              5,000                4,187,600         

25,000              

7,600                40,000              5,000                34,166,984       

7,600                40,000              5,000                34,166,984       

-                        -                        -                        -                        

29,954,384       

7,600                40,000              5,000                4,187,600         

25,000              

7,600                40,000              5,000                34,166,984       

19,503,830       

221,000            

616,426            

515,000            

197,000            

1,161,000         

-                        -                        -                        22,214,256       

5,508,942         

7,600                40,000              5,000                6,443,786         

7,600                40,000              5,000                34,166,984       

-                        -                        -                        -                        

Year Ended June 30, 2025

Page 13
DRAFT - Not Finalized

April 18, 2024  8:49

 Schedule  3A Page 107 of 160



Invested in Tangible Local Fund 2024 Amended

Capital Assets Capital Balance Annual Budget

$ $ $ $

Revenues

Provincial Grants

Ministry of Education and Child Care 1,528,325                   1,528,325            1,528,325              

Amortization of Deferred Capital Revenue 11,197,272                 11,197,272          10,992,151            

Amortization of Deferred Capital Revenue - For Lease 61,477                        61,477                 61,477                   

Total Revenue 12,787,074                 -                           12,787,074          12,581,953            

Expenses

Operations and Maintenance 1,589,802                   1,589,802            1,589,802              

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets

Operations and Maintenance 11,539,348                 11,539,348          11,186,935            

Transportation and Housing 594,865                      594,865               725,562                 

Total Expense 13,724,015                 -                           13,724,015          13,502,299            

Net Revenue (Expense) (936,941)                     -                           (936,941)              (920,346)               

Net Transfers (to) from other funds

Tangible Capital Assets - Work in Progress -                           2,704,100              

Local Capital 350,000               350,000               350,000                 

Total Net Transfers -                                  350,000               350,000               3,054,100              

Other Adjustments to Fund Balances

Tangible Capital Assets WIP Purchased from Local Capital 350,000                      (350,000)              -                           

Total Other Adjustments to Fund Balances 350,000                      (350,000)              -                           

Budgeted Surplus (Deficit), for the year (586,941)                     -                           (586,941)              2,133,754              

School District No. 62 (Sooke)
Annual Budget - Capital Revenue and Expense

Year Ended June 30, 2025

2025 Annual Budget

DRAFT - Not Finalized

April 18, 2024  8:49 Page 14

 
Schedule 4

 Page 108 of 160



Page 109 of 160



Page 110 of 160



POLICY AND REGULATIONS ADOPTION 
 
School District #62 (Sooke) 
 
April 30, 2024 
 

 
Draft new Policy and Regulations C-114 ”Sanctuary Schools” are now ready for Notice of 
Motion. 
 
NOTICE OF MOTION: 
 
That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) give Notice of Motion to draft 
new Policy and Regulations C-114 “Sanctuary Schools”. 
 

Page 111 of 160



 

 

School District #62 (Sooke) 

 

 
 

SANCTUARY SCHOOLS 

No.:  C-114 

Effective:  
Revised:  
Reviewed:  Apr. 9/24; Apr. 30/24 

 
SCHOOL BOARD POLICY 
 
The Board of Education takes pride in its commitment to providing a safe and welcoming environment 
for all children and families who are ordinarily resident in the school district, including those with 
precarious immigration status or no immigration status. 
 
All school age children who are ordinarily residents in the school district, including those with 
precarious immigration status or no immigration status in Canada, are entitled to admission in school. 
The personal information of enrolled students or their families shall not be shared with federal 
immigration authorities unless required by law. The Board shall not permit Canada Border Services 
Agency (CBSA) officials or immigration authorities to enter schools or district facilities unless required 
by law. All public-school employees and volunteers shall be informed of this policy, and it will be 
communicated to requisite stakeholders including immigrant communities. 
 
 

Page 112 of 160



 

 

School District #62 (Sooke) 

 

 
 

SANCTUARY SCHOOLS 

No.:  C-114 

Effective:  
Revised:  
Reviewed:  Apr. 9/24; Apr. 30/24 

 
SCHOOL BOARD REGULATION 
 
The Board will implement communication protocols and admission procedures in accordance with 
these requirements: 
 
1. This policy and relevant provisions of the School Act will be communicated annually to all school 

administrators and school office staff. Such materials will also be prominently displayed in school 
offices, and on the district’s website. 

 
2. The Board will provide orientation and training for all staff regarding the policy to promote 

expertise and sensitivity regarding the needs of students without immigration status in Canada. 
 
3. A thorough communications plan will be developed to share this information in immigrant 

communities. 
 
4. The appropriate instructions for staff and public information materials concerning admission 

procedures will be revised to reflect the policy. Such revisions will also be included in all training 
and orientation programs for staff and community agencies who have responsibilities in this area. 

 
5. All student registration forms, including electronic databases, which refer to immigration status in 

Canada, will be deemed strictly confidential. 
 
6. All student registration forms, including electronic databases, will provide clearly stated options for 

any family which does not wish to share proof of immigration status as a means of establishing 
that they are ordinarily resident in the area served by Sooke school district. 

 
7. Where there is a need to verify a student’s name, home address, or date of arrival in Canada, and 

where the usual supporting documentation is not available, the Board and schools will accept a 
combination of other documents outlined in the Ministry of Education and Child Care’s Eligibility of 
Students for Operating Grant Funding Policy. 

 
8.  Schools will continue to comply with current Ministry of Education requirements in the case of 

students for whom ELL funding claims are made but will not disseminate students’ personal 
information. 

 
9. An independent or third-party based complaints mechanism will be set up to hear from families 

who have been denied admission based on immigration status and appropriate accountability 
measures developed to ensure that no child who is ordinarily resident is turned away. 

 
 
 

Page 113 of 160



POLICY AND REGULATIONS ADOPTION 
 
School District #62 (Sooke) 
 
April 30, 2024 
 

 
Draft new Policy and Regulations F-329 ”Records Management” are now ready for Notice 
of Motion. 
 
NOTICE OF MOTION: 
 
That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) give Notice of Motion to draft 
new Policy and Regulations F-329 “Records Management”. 
 

Page 114 of 160



 

 

School District #62 (Sooke)  

 
 
RECORDS MANAGEMENT  

 

No.:  F-329  

Effective:  
Revised:  
Reviewed: Apr. 9/24; Apr. 
30/24 

 

SCHOOL BOARD POLICY 

Rationale 

This policy establishes School District #62’s (Sooke) commitment to the effective management of 
administrative and operational records, information, and data assets which are essential to 
support the strategic goals of the School District. 
 
Policy 
 
The Board of Education believes that it is essential to ensure that critical records are preserved 
and protected for as long as required. Therefore, it is the policy of School District 62 to establish 
a framework and accountabilities for records management policies, schedules, systems, and 
procedures to implement a records management program. 
 
Principles that guide Records Management at SD62 
 
Records and information management policy, regulations, procedures, and practices will be based 
on and comply with all applicable regulatory and legislative requirements 

All School District #62 (Sooke) employees and contracted service providers who create, receive, 

and use records have records and information management responsibilities and are accountable 

for the management of records and information generated in the course of their duties in their 

physical and virtual environment. 

Records and information management practices should be linked to organizational goals, 

objectives, and administration, with a coordinated approach across School District #62 (Sooke). 

This policy is accompanied by a records management regulation, retention schedule, and 

associated procedures 

 

 

Related Policies and Legislation: 

Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act 
Permanent Student Record Instructions 
School Act 

Page 115 of 160



 

1 
 

School District #62 (Sooke)  

 
RECORDS MANAGEMENT 

No.: F-329 

Effective: 
Revised: 
Reviewed: Apr. 9/24; Apr. 
30/24 

 

ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATIONS 

Purpose 

This regulation establishes School District #62’s (Sooke) regulations concerning records 
management. 
 
Regulation  

Records management regulations include: 

1.1 Definition of a Record 
1.2 Records Management Governance 
1.3 Records Retention Schedules 
1.4 Transitory Records 
1.5 Records Destruction 
1.6 Records Access, Storage, and Security  
1.7 Remote Access and Records Transfer 
1.8 Version Control and Naming Conventions 
1.9 Executive Records 
1.10 Vital Records 
1.11 Archival Records 
1.12 Digitization of Records 
1.13 Managing Email 
1.14 Legal Requests for Records 
1.15 Office of Primary Responsibility 
1.16 Correction to Personal Information 
 
 
1.1 Definition of a Record 
Records include books, documents, maps, drawings, photographs, letters, vouchers, papers, 
and any other thing on which information is recorded or stored by graphic, electronic, 
mechanical, or other means, but does not include a computer program or any other mechanism 
that produces records. 
 
1.2 Records Management Governance 
School District #62 (Sooke) is responsible for establishing the framework and accountabilities 
for records management policies, schedules, systems, standards, and guidelines in alignment 
with legislative and regulatory requirements, including the Freedom of Information and 
Protection of Privacy Act and the School Act, etc. This is to ensure the proper management of 
records, preserving and protecting the integral properties of records. The School District #62 

 Page 116 of 160



 

2 
 

(Sooke) Records Officer (if one has been formally appointed) is responsible for implementing a 
records management program as a best practice to ensure records within their respective 
portfolio are effectively managed. 
 
All employees and third-party service providers are responsible for managing and securing the 
records they create, collect, amend, and receive in the context of their functional responsibilities 
in accordance with the requirements identified in this document. 

 
1.3 Records Retention Schedules 
Records will be retained, managed, and disposed of according to approved records retention 
schedules. Records retention schedules will prescribe timetables that govern the records 
lifecycle and will be required before records can be destroyed, transferred to the legal custody 
of another organization, or retained in perpetuity. Key subject matter expert review will be 
required to ensure retention periods are reflected accurately in the records retention schedules.  
 
This regulation is accompanied by a procedure/schedule, School District #62 (Sooke) Records 
Classification and Retention Schedule. 
 
1.4 Transitory Records 
Transitory records may be immediately disposed of as soon as their business use ends. 
Transitory records are records of temporary usefulness that are needed only to complete a 
routine action or prepare a subsequent record (e.g., a new version). Transitory records are not 
needed to meet legal, policy, or financial obligations, not needed for operations, program 
delivery or operations, and not needed to account for SD62 actions or decisions. 
 
This regulation is accompanied by a procedure. 
 
1.5 Records Destruction 
Records will be eligible for final disposition when their scheduled retention period has expired as 
prescribed by School District #62 (Sooke) Records Classification and Retention Schedule. 
Authorized disposal of records will be done in such a way that information cannot be retrieved 
or reconstructed. Destruction of records will be done securely and confidentially and, if 
required, with the issuance of an official “Certificate of Destruction” from third-party service 
providers once destruction has been completed.  

This regulation is accompanied by a procedure. 
 
1.6 Records Access, Storage, and Security 

Records will be accessible to all authorized users to fulfill the duties of their role. Therefore, 

School District #62 (Sooke) will provide access to, manage, preserve, and dispose of records in 

compliance with records management legislative and regulatory requirements, including the 

Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act and School Act, etc. 

Records access will be assigned based on least privilege need-to-know principles meaning that 
employees and service providers will be given access to the minimum amount of records/data 
required to fulfill the duties of their position.  User access will be reviewed every 6 months to 
ensure access is current and accurate. 

Page 117 of 160



 

3 
 

Sensitive, personal, and confidential records will be stored in secure areas. All records will be 
managed and preserved to remain authentic, trustworthy, complete, and accessible throughout 
their lifecycle regardless of location, media, or format. Records will be protected from 
unauthorized disclosure, modification, removal, or destruction at all times.  

Records that are no longer required to be stored on-site at School District #62 (Sooke) 
premises will be stored offsite at a secure and bonded storage facility where they will be 
protected against theft, water damage, fire damage, and earthquake damage. Accurate records 
listings will be maintained for all records stored offsite to assist with the identification and timely 
retrieval of records should they be required by School District #62 (Sooke). The Records Officer 
(if one has been formally appointed) or designate must approve all offsite records transfers and 
records retrievals.  

When employees access and remove physical records currently being stored in semi-active 
storage areas at a designated workplace, they must follow a pre-defined logging system that is 
administered by the office of the primary responsibility for the records as determined by School 
District #62 (Sooke) Records Classification and Retention Schedule. 

1.7 Remote Access and Records Transfer 
When working remotely School District #62 (Sooke) employees and third-party service 
providers will ensure the protection and security of all records. Whenever possible physical 
records should not be removed from the worksite. Any exceptions to this must be pre-approved 
by the employees’/service provider’s manager or administrator. A record documenting the 
approval and the records involved must be kept.  
School District #62 (Sooke) acknowledges the need to disclose or transfer student records to 

schools both within and external to the district. At all times these transfers/disclosures must be 

made with the strictest of security measures to ensure the records maintain their integrity and 

our requirements to protect privacy are not impaired. Measures to safeguard records from risks 

such as unauthorized collection, use, disclosure, access, and destruction are imperative in 

maintaining the integrity of records when offsite or in transit.  

This regulation is accompanied by a procedure. 

1.8 Version Control and Naming Conventions 
To ensure the correct version of an electronic document is being used and managed 
appropriately, version control and naming conventions are required and will be administered in 
compliance with the Records Classification and Retention Schedule. 

This regulation is accompanied by a procedure. 

1.9 Executive Records 
Executive records are the administrative and operational records (in all formats) of the offices of 
the Superintendent, Deputy Superintendent, Associate Superintendent, Secretary-Treasurer, 
Executive Director of Human Resources, Executive Director of Digital Solutions, and the 
Trustees of the Board of Education. These records often document the development, 
implementation, operation, and evaluation of School District #62 (Sooke) policies, programs, 
and services. Such records are unique primary source documents and will be retained.  

Page 118 of 160



 

4 
 

A specialized retention schedule is required that governs the lifecycle of Executive records from 
inception to final disposition.  This special Executive schedule takes precedence over all other 
retention periods in the Records Classification and Retention Schedule for this class of records.  

This regulation is accompanied by a procedure. 

1.10 Vital Records 
Vital records will be securely protected so that re-establishing the legal, financial, and functional 
responsibilities of School District #62 (Sooke) is achieved quickly after a catastrophic event. The 
identification and management of vital records is included in the Business Continuity Plan. Due 
to their significance, paper vital records should not be stored onsite but rather offsite storage 
should be used using a provincially recognized records storage service provider. In addition, a 
secure electronic offsite backup of these records must be kept. 

This regulation is accompanied by a procedure. 

1.11 Archival Records 
Records that meet the criteria of archival will be those that both document the activities, 
decisions, and responsibilities of School District #62 (Sooke) and contribute to an 
understanding of the history and culture of the organization. Records that meet archival 
requirements will be appraised by their information content and the context of their creation 
which should be reflected in the Records Classification and Retention Schedule. Archival records 
will provide the best evidence of the activities and responsibilities of School District #62 
(Sooke), and/or have significant intrinsic value.  
 
1.12 Digitization of Records 
School District #62 (Sooke) is committed to storing records in their digital format whenever 
possible. Digitization replaces paper records with digital copies to provide online access or 
provides a digitized copy destined for digital archives. The digitization of records will include 
planning, assessing, preparing, digitizing, compiling metadata, conducting quality assurance 
mechanisms, and storing and managing the digitized records.  

 
1.13 Managing Email 
Email is the most common form of written communication when conducting business and often 
represents administrative, operational, legal, evidentiary, archival, or historical value. Email 
meets the formal definition of a record and is equally subject to the Freedom of Information 
and Protection of Privacy Act (FIPPA). All records present significant business risk and expense 
if stored beyond their retention period and must be managed in accordance with the Records 
Classification and Retention Schedule. 

This regulation is accompanied by a procedure. 

1.14 Legal Requests for Records 
Records in the custody and/or control of School District #62 (Sooke) may be subject to legal 
requests from time to time including document discoveries and requests made under the 
Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act. Once a legal request has been received it 
is essential that all responsive records eligible for final disposition and destruction that have 
reached the final stage of their respective lifecycle (e.g., when the scheduled active and semi-

 Page 119 of 160



 

5 
 

active retention periods have expired) do not proceed. All records must be held by School 
District #62 (Sooke) until all legal proceedings have been completed. 
  
This regulation is accompanied by a procedure. 
 
1.15 Office of Primary Responsibility 
The Office of Primary Responsibility (OPR) is the office within School District #62 (Sooke) that 
is responsible for the business function related to the records. The OPR retains the official 
records to meet operational, financial, legal, audit, and other requirements. 
 

School District #62 (Sooke) identifies the OPR for all records in our custody and control within 
the Records Classification and Retention Schedule. 
 
Non-OPR departments are not required to maintain the records of OPR departments which 
supports the reduction and elimination of duplicate copies of records throughout School District 
#62 (Sooke). If you are ever unsure which department is the OPR for a particular record, 
please review the Records Classification and Retention Schedule or contact the Records Officer 
(if one has been formally appointed).  

1.16 Correction to Personal Information 
Under Section 29 of the Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act, an individual 
whose information is in a public body’s custody or control who believes there is an error or 
omission in their personal information can request the Head (or designate) of the public 
body to correct the information when the individual is unable to correct the information 
themselves. 
 
School District #62 (Sooke) is therefore required to correct or annotate personal information 
in its custody or control when it receives notification of a correction or annotation of personal 
information (once identity is verified and correction request is validated). School District #62 
(Sooke) is also required to correct or annotate personal information in its custody or control 
when it receives notification of a correction or annotation of personal information from 
another public body. 

This regulation is accompanied by a procedure. 
 

Definitions 
Active records: are records in constant use that need to be retained in the office close to 

users. 

Administrative records: are records which are common to all organizations. They support 

functions such as the management of facilities, property, material, finance, personnel, and 

information systems, as well as committee activities, agreement development, contract 

management, information services, and legal matters. 

Archival records: are records used to administer, support, or document the delivery of SD62 

programs, carry out operations, make decisions or account for District activities, and require 

indefinite preservation. 

Page 120 of 160



 

6 
 

Full Retention: refers to the requirement to retain records permanently once they have 
reached their final disposition for historical or archival purpose. 

Inactive Records: are records that are no longer required for ongoing District business. These 
are records that are ready for final disposition; in other words, records for which the scheduled 
active and semi-active retention periods have lapsed. 

Office of Primary Responsibility: is the business area that creates or receives and files 
original, official records relating to its particular function or activity within the District. The 
department is responsible for defining and following the retention and disposal schedule 
established for its records. 

Official District Records: are all records created or received by District employees and third-
party service providers in the course of their duties on behalf of the District and retained to 
meet business, legal, financial, legislative, and other needs. Official District records may be in 
the form of paper, non-paper-based media such as microfilm, audio or video tapes and 
electronic media such as email, Word documents, spreadsheets and presentations documents, 
digital images of paper or microfilm, database, web sites, portals, and social media tools. 

Operational records: are records which are unique to SD62. They support its operations and 
services in carrying out the functions for which it is responsible according to statute, mandate, 
or policy. 

Personal Information: means recorded information about an identifiable individual. 

Personal Information Bank: is a collection of personal information this is organized or 
retrievable that may be retrieved using an individual identifier such as name, student or 
employee number, symbol, or another identifier assigned to an individual. 

Records schedule: is a prescribed timetable that governs the life cycle of a file from creation, 
through active use within an office, retention in off-site storage during its semi-active period, to 
final disposition when it becomes inactive. 

Retention and disposal schedule: defines specific time period for keeping records in the 
office (active phase), for maintaining records in storage (the semi-active phase), and 
determining their final disposition) destruction or indefinite archival preservation. 

Retention period: the length of time a file is retained, as governed by the records schedule. 

Selective Retention: refers to the process of determining records that should or should not 
be retained once they have reached their final disposition for historical or archival purpose. 

Semi-Active records: are records no loner used constantly, but are required for reference, 
legal, audit or other purposes. Semi-active records may be transferred to on or off-site secured 
storage to free-up limited and expensive office space. 

Superseded or Obsolete: identifies records for which retention is dependent upon the 
occurrence of some event or action. Superseded or obsolete is used to allow records to be 
retained for a flexible period, until they are no longer useful for reference or informational 
purposes.  

Transitory records: are records of temporary usefulness that are needed only to complete a 
routine action or prepare a subsequent record (e.g., a new version). Transitory records are not 

Page 121 of 160



 

7 
 

needed to meet legal, policy, or financial obligations, not needed for operations, program 
delivery or operations, and not needed to account for SD62 actions or decisions. 

Vital records: are records considered essential to SD62’s continuing or resuming its operations 
in the event of a disaster. A record is vital when it would be required to resume or continue 
District business, support SD62’s legal or financial position or is made vital by regulation or 
statute. 

 

Page 122 of 160



Page 123 of 160



Page 124 of 160



Page 125 of 160



Page 126 of 160



Page 127 of 160



 Page 128 of 160



Page 129 of 160



Page 130 of 160



Page 131 of 160



Page 132 of 160



Page 133 of 160



1  

 

 

Board Info Note 

Public Board Meeting 
April 30, 2024 

Agenda Item: 9.1 – 3 Year Rolling School Calendar 
 

 

Background 

 

The Sooke School District, along with neighbouring districts in Saanich and Victoria, currently plan school 

calendars on a 3-year cycle, allowing for future planning and organization to occur. The upcoming school 

year of 2024/25 marks the final year in this cycle. Staff propose that we plan now for the 2025/26 and 

2026/27 school years, allowing for the projection of a rolling 3-year school calendar.  

 

Next Steps 

The 3 South Island districts have met to, where possible, align school calendars for the purpose of creating a 

rolling 3-year school calendar. The board package includes a chart showing proposed dates for the 3 District’s 

Non-Instructional Days. Also included are full school calendars for this year and next (already confirmed and 

passed) as well as draft calendars for the 2025/26 and 2026/27 school years.  

Next steps involve consultation with all partner groups and collecting feedback from the community during 

the Notice of Motion 30-day period. Gathered information will be shared at the June Ed Policy meeting with 

the intention of having the rolling 3-year school calendar passed at the June 30th Board Meeting.  

Recommended Motion 

 

That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) give Notice of Motion to draft a School Year Calendar 

for 2025-26 and 2026-27. 

 

Prepared by:  Monica Braniff, Deputy Superintendent 

Page 134 of 160



 

 

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S

1 1 2 3 4 5

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 6 7 8 9 10 11 12

9 10 11 12 13 14 15 13 14 15 16 17 18 19

16 17 18 19 20 21 22 20 21 22 23 24 25 26

23 24 25 26 27 28 29 27 28 29 30 31

30 31

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S

1 2 1 2 3 4 5 6 7

3 4 5 6 7 8 9 8 9 10 11 12 13 14

10 11 12 13 14 15 16 15 16 17 18 19 20 21

17 18 19 20 21 22 23 22 23 24 25 26 27 28

24 25 26 27 28 29 30 29 30 31

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 1 2

5 6 7 8 9 10 11 3 4 5 6 7 8 9

12 13 14 15 16 17 18 10 11 12 13 14 15 16

19 20 21 22 23 24 25 17 18 19 20 21 22 23

26 27 28 29 30 24 25 26 27 28 29 30

31

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3

7 8 9 10 11 12 13 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

14 15 16 17 18 19 20 11 12 13 14 15 16 17

21 22 23 24 25 26 27 18 19 20 21 22 23 24

28 29 30 31 25 26 27 28 29

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S

1 2 1 2 3 4 5 6

3 4 5 6 7 8 9 7 8 9 10 11 12 13

10 11 12 13 14 15 16 14 15 16 17 18 19 20

17 18 19 20 21 22 23 21 22 23 24 25 26 27

24 25 26 27 28 29 30 28 29 30

31

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 1

5 6 7 8 9 10 11 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

12 13 14 15 16 17 18 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

19 20 21 22 23 24 25 16 17 18 19 20 21 22

26 27 28 29 30 31 23 24 25 26 27 28 29

30

SD 62 (SOOKE)                             

2023/2024 CALENDAR
JULY AUGUST

SEPTEMBER OCTOBER

MARCH 

JUNE

APRIL 

MAY

NOVEMBER DECEMBER

JANUARY FEBRUARY 

Page 135 of 160



 

 

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3

7 8 9 10 11 12 13 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

14 15 16 17 18 19 20 11 12 13 14 15 16 17

21 22 23 24 25 26 27 18 19 20 21 22 23 24

28 29 30 31 25 26 27 28 29 30 31

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 1 2 3 4 5

8 9 10 11 12 13 14 6 7 8 9 10 11 12

15 16 17 18 19 20 21 13 14 15 16 17 18 19

22 23 24 25 26 27 28 20 21 22 23 24 25 26

29 30 27 28 29 30 31

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S

1 2 1 2 3 4 5 6 7

3 4 5 6 7 8 9 8 9 10 11 12 13 14

10 11 12 13 14 15 16 15 16 17 18 19 20 21

17 18 19 20 21 22 23 22 23 24 25 26 27 28

24 25 26 27 28 29 30 29 30 31

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 1

5 6 7 8 9 10 11 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

12 13 14 15 16 17 18 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

19 20 21 22 23 24 25 16 17 18 19 20 21 22

26 27 28 29 30 31 23 24 25 26 27 28

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S

 1/2 3 4 5 6 7 8 1 2 3 4 5

9 10 11 12 13 14 15 6 7 8 9 10 11 12

16 17 18 19 20 21 22 13 14 15 16 17 18 19

23 24 25 26 27 28 29 20 21 22 23 24 25 26

30 31 27 28 29 30

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S

1 2 3 1 2 3 4 5 6 7

4 5 6 7 8 9 10 8 9 10 11 12 13 14

11 12 13 14 15 16 17 15 16 17 18 19 20 21

18 19 20 21 22 23 24 22 23 24 25 26 27 28

25 26 27 28 29 30 31 29 30

NOVEMBER DECEMBER

MAY JUNE

MARCH APRIL 

JANUARY FEBRUARY 

SD62 (SOOKE)                             
2024/2025 CALENDAR

JULY AUGUST

SEPTEMBER OCTOBER

Page 136 of 160



 

 

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 5 1 2

6 7 8 9 10 11 12 3 4 5 6 7 8 9

13 14 15 16 17 18 19 10 11 12 13 14 15 16

20 21 22 23 24 25 26 17 18 19 20 21 22 23

27 28 29 30 31 24 25 26 27 28 29 30/31

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 4

7 8 9 10 11 12 13 5 6 7 8 9 10 11

14 15 16 17 18 19 20 12 13 14 15 16 17 18

21 22 23 24 25 26 27 19 20 21 22 23 24 25

28 29 30 26 27 28 29 20 31

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S

1 1 2 3 4 5 6

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 7 8 9 10 11 12 13

9 10 11 12 13 14 15 14 15 16 17 18 19 20

16 17 18 19 20 21 22 21 22 23 24 25 26 27

23 24 25 26 27 28 29/30 28 29 30 31

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S

1 2 3 1 2 3 4 5 6 7

4 5 6 7 8 9 10 8 9 10 11 12 13 14

11 12 13 14 15 16 17 15 16 17 18 19 20 21

18 19 20 21 22 23 24 22 23 24 25 26 27 28

25 26 27 28 29 30 31

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 1 2 3 4

8 9 10 11 12 13 14 5 6 7 8 9 10 11

15 16 17 18 19 20 21 12 13 14 15 16 17 18

22 23 24 25 26 27 28 19 20 21 22 23 24 25

29 30 31 26 27 28 29 30

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S

1 2 1 2 3 4 5 6

3 4 5 6 7 8 9 7 8 9 10 11 12 13

10 11 12 13 14 15 16 14 15 16 17 18 19 20

17 18 19 20 21 22 23 21 22 23 24 25 26 27

24 25 26 27 28 29 30/31 28 29 30

SEPTEMBER OCTOBER

NOVEMBER DECEMBER

SD62 (SOOKE)                           
2025/2026 DRAFT CALENDAR

JULY AUGUST

MAY JUNE

MARCH APRIL 

JANUARY FEBRUARY 

Page 137 of 160



 

 

 

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4  1/2 3 4 5 6 7 8

5 6 7 8 9 10 11 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

10 13 14 15 16 17 18 16 17 18 19 20 21 22

19 20 21 22 23 24 25 23 24 25 26 27 28 29

26 27 28 29 30 31 30 31

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3

6 7 8 9 10 11 12 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

13 14 15 16 17 18 19 11 12 13 14 15 16 17

20 21 22 23 24 25 26 18 19 20 21 22 23 24

27 28 29 30 19 26 27 28 29 30 31

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 1 2 3 4 5

8 9 10 11 12 13 14 6 7 8 9 10 11 12

15 16 17 18 19 20 21 13 14 15 16 17 18 19

22 23 24 25 26 27 28 20 21 22 23 24 25 26

29 30 27 28 29 30 31

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S

1 2 1 2 3 4 5 6

3 4 5 6 7 8 9 7 8 9 10 11 12 13

10 11 12 13 14 15 16 14 15 16 17 18 19 20

17 18 19 20 21 22 23 21 22 23 24 25 26 27

24 25 26 27 28 29 30/31 28

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3

7 8 9 10 11 12 13 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

14 15 16 17 18 19 20 11 12 13 14 15 16 17

21 22 23 24 25 26 27 18 19 20 21 22 23 24

28 29 30 31 25 26 27 28 29 30

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S

1/2 3 4 5 6 7 8 1 2 3 4 5

9 10 11 12 13 14 15 6 7 8 9 10 11 12

16 17 18 19 20 21 22 13 14 15 16 17 18 19

23 24 25 26 27 28 29 20 21 22 23 24 25 26

30 31 27 28 29 30

MAY JUNE

NOVEMBER DECEMBER

JANUARY FEBRUARY 

MARCH APRIL 

SD62 (SOOKE)                                 
2026/2027 DRAFT CALENDAR

JULY AUGUST

SEPTEMBER OCTOBER

Page 138 of 160



2023/2024 2024/2025 2025/2026 2026/2027

SEPT SD62 Mon 18 Mon 23 Mon 22 Mon 21

OCT SD62 Fri 20 Fri 25 Fri 24 Fri 23

NOV SD62 Fri 24 Fri 22 Fri 21 Fri 27

FEB SD62 Fri 16 Fri 14 Fri 13 Fri 12

APR SD62 Fri 19 Fri 11 Mon 20 Mon 19

MAY SD62 Fri 17 Mon 12 Fri 15 Fri 21

2023/2024 2024/2025 2025/2026 2026/2027

SEPT SD62 Mon 18 Mon 23 Mon 22 Mon 21

SD61 Fri 22 Mon 23 Mon 22 Mon 21

SD63 Fri 22 Mon 23 Mon 22 Fri 25

OCT SD62 Fri 20 Fri 25 Fri 24 Fri 23

SD61 Fri 20 Fri 25 Fri 24 Fri 23

SD63 Fri 20 Fri 25 Fri 24 Fri 23

NOV SD62 Fri 24 Fri 22 Fri 21 Fri 27

SD61 Mon 20 Fri 22 Fri 21 Fri 27

SD63 Mon 20 Mon 18 Fri 21 Fri 27

FEB SD62 Fri 16 Fri 14 Fri 13 Fri 12

SD61 Fri 16 Fri 14 Fri 13 Fri 12

SD63 Fri 16 Fri 14 Fri 13 Fri 12

APR SD62 Fri 19 Fri 11 Mon 20 Mon 19

SD61 N/A N/A N/A N/A

SD63 Mon 22 Fri 11 Mon 20 Mon 19

MAY SD62 Fri 17 Mon 12 Fri 15 Fri 21

SD61 Fri 17 Fri 16 Fri 15 Fri 21

SD63 Fri 17 Fri 16 Fri 15 Fri 21

SD 62 Non Instructional Days

Comparison of Non-Instructional Days

Page 139 of 160



Page 140 of 160



Page 141 of 160



Page 142 of 160



Page 143 of 160



Page 144 of 160



Page 145 of 160



Page 146 of 160



Page 147 of 160



Page 148 of 160



Page 149 of 160



Page 150 of 160



Page 151 of 160



Page 152 of 160



Page 153 of 160



Page 154 of 160



Page 155 of 160



Page 156 of 160



Page 157 of 160



Page 158 of 160



Page 159 of 160



 

Item 11.1 – Public Board Meeting 

School District 62 (Sooke) 

Board of Education 90-Day Plan Work Plan Summary  

 

Action May 2024 June 2024 July 2024 

Approve 

- Final readings of Budget Bylaw (if 

available) 

- Final readings of  

Capital Plan Bylaw (if available) 

- Auditor engagement/plan 

- Annual Plan Package: 

- FESL targets 

- Strategic plan targets 

- Na’tsa’maht Annual Report 

- Superintendent Growth Report  

- Adopt Vision, Mission, Values and Be-

liefs for the 2025-2029 Strategic Plan 

-  

Review 

- 3rd Quarter Report Package: 

- Strategic Plan Q3 

- Financial forecast 

- District Operations Plan for 2024-

2025 

- Review all Board Motions for the year 

- Approve Vision, Mission, Values 

Complete 

- Municipal Partner Meetings (Board/ 

Council) - TBD 

- Board Annual Self-Assessment 

- Host Retirement/Long Service Event. 

 

- Strategic Plan Renewal – Vision, 

Mission, Values and Beliefs 

-  

Engage 

- Workshop 2 – Values and Beliefs 

Strategic Plan Renewal (May 21) 

 

- Grad/Year End Ceremonies 

- Acknowledgement Letters to Partner 

Groups 

- National Indigenous Peoples Day 

(June 21) 

- Host Retirement/Long-Service Event 

(Jun 5) 

-  

 

Page 160 of 160


	6.1 Correspondence (page )
	a. Email from Justine C, dated April 1, 2024, RE: Build Seamless Before & After School Childcare
	7.1 Resources Committee – Meeting of April 16, 2024 – Christine Lervold (page )
	8.1 Education-Policy Committee – Meeting of April 9, 2024 – Cendra Beaton (page )
	6.1 Correspondence
	Email from Vickie Heist, dated March 5, 2024, RE: PA System Usage at Ruth King Elementary School
	43. MOVED Ebony Logins/Allison Watson
	That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) receive the email from Vickie Heist, dated March 5, 2024, RE: PA System Usage at Ruth King Elementary School.
	CARRIED
	6.2 Standing Delegations (STA, CUPE, PVP, SPEAC) – 5 minutes each
	Committee Report of
	1. CALL TO ORDER AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF FIRST NATIONS TERRITORIES
	2. COMMITTEE REPORT
	3. PRESENTATIONS
	4. BUSINESS

	COMMITTEE REPORT
	EDUCATION COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE
	PUBLIC MEETING
	April 23, 2024 – 6:00 p.m.
	3. PRESENTATIONS
	Sheet1



